ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. The circuit court erred in holding that the failure of the West Virginia Department of 

Environmental Protection ("DEP") to file a timely appeal of the West Virginia Surface Mine 

Board's fmal order awarding fees to Hominy Creek Preservation Association, Inc. ("HCPN') did 

not preclude review of the matters that the Board adjudicated in its fmal order. 

II. Alternatively, the circuit court committed plain error in applying 38 C.S.R. § 2-20.12.a.l to 

the facts ofthis case and reversing the Surface Mine Board's fee award on the ground that "[a]s a 

matter of law, Hominy Creek cannot recover fees from DEP without a finding that DEP was a 

violator and furthermore, that Hominy took part in determining such." 

III. With respect to HCPA's entitlement to an award offees and costs, the circuit court erred in 

failing to defer to the Surface Mine Board's finding that HCP A made a substantial contribution to 

a full and fair determination ofthe issues in the two administrative appeals underlying the Board's 

fee award and instead reversing the award based on the circuit court's own factual assertions, which 

the administrative record does not support. 

IV. The circuit court erred in overlooking DEP's effective ratification of the settlement 

agreement between HCPA and Green Valley. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

I. Statutory and Regulatory Bach:ground. 

In the first instance, this appeal concerns (1) the period of time for filing of actions for' 

judicial review of agency decisions and (2) the absence ofany provision tolling the running ofthat 

time with respect to a motion for reconsideration ofa final order ofthe Surface Mine Board. The 

State Administrative Procedures Act provides that "[p]roceedings for review shall be instituted by 
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filing a petition ... within thirty days after the date upon which [the petitionerJ received notice of 

the fmal order or decision of the agency." W.Va. Code § 29A-5-4(b). The State Administrative 

Procedures Act does not authorize administrative agencies to reconsider or clarify fmal orders once 

issued, nor does it toll the time for filing a petition for Judicial review if a party elects to file a 

motion for reconsideration or. clarification anyway. 

The statutes that specifically govern judicial review of orders of environmental review 

boards provide that "[a J11 ofthe provisions ofsection four, article five, chapter twenty-nine-a ofthis 

code apply to and govern the review with like effect as if the provisions of said section four were 

set forth in extenso in this section." W.Va. Code § 22B-I-9. Each order of a review board "shall 

be final unless vacated or modified upon judicial review thereof in accordance with the provisions 

of this chapter." W.Va. Code § 22B-1-7G). The review board statutes do not authorize a board to 

reconsider or clarify final orders once issued, nor do they toll the time for filing a petition for 

judicial review if a party elects to file a motion for reconsideration or clarification anyway. 

Collectively, the environmental review boards must "establish procedural rules in accordance 

with the provisions of chapter twenty-nine-a of this code for the regulation of the conduct of all 

proceedings before the boards." W.Va. Code § 22B-I-3(c). The Surface Mine Board has 

promulgated procedural rules that are codified at 49 C.S.R. 1. Those rules authorize the filing and 

disposition ofmotions "which tend to regulate the course ofhearing, simplify the issues, and dispose 

ofprocedural requests or similar matters," 49 C.S.R. § 1-1-5.2, but they do not expressly authorize 

motions for clarification or reconsideration of final orders once entered. The rules of the Surface 

Mine Board also provide that "[t]he appellant may request a stay of the action appealed from by 

written motion contemporaneous with the filing of the notice of appeal," 49 C.S.R. § 1-1-5.5, but 
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they do not authorize the request or grant ofa stay ofthe time for filing a petition for judicial review 

of a final order of the Surface Mine Board. 

Alternatively, if this Court determines that DEP filed its petition for judicial review in a 

timely manner, this appeal turns on the statutes and regulations that govern fee-shifting in 

administrative review proceedings pursuant to the Surface Coal Mining and Reclamation Act, which 

is codified at W.Va. Code §§ 22-3-1 through 22-3-31A. The purposes of that Act include, among 

other things: (1) expanding the established and effective statewide program to protect the public and 

the environment from the adverse effects ofsurface mining operations and (2) assuring that adequate 

procedures are provided for public participation where appropriate. W.Va. Code § 22-3-1 (b)(1) and 

(b)(6). 

The Surface Coal Mining and Reclamation Act and its implementing regulations make up 

the approved state regulatory program for West Virginia pursuantto the Surface Mining Control and 

Reclamation Act of 1977,30 U.S.C. §§ 1201-1328 ("SMCRA"). Congress enacted SMCRA to, 

among other things: (1) "establish a nationwide program to protect society and the environment 

from the adverse effects ofsurface coal mining operations;" (2) "assist the States in developing and 

implementing a program to achieve the pUl}Joses of [SMCRA];" and (3) "assure that appropriate 

procedures are provided for the public participation in the development, revision, and enforcement 

of regulations, standards, reclamation plans, or programs established by the Secretary [of the 

Interior] 01' any State under [SMCRA]." 30 U.S.C. § 1202(a), (g), and (i) (emphasis supplied). 

Federal regulation requires that "States with an approved State program shall implement, administer, 

enforce and maintain it in accordance with the Act, this chapter and the provisions ofthe approved 
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State program." 30 C.F.R. § 733.11. A separate federal regulation authorizes amendment of 

approved state regulatory programs, but provides that: 

Whenever changes to laws or regulations that make up the approved State program 
are proposed by the State, the State shall immediately submit the proposed changes 
to the Director as an amendment. No such change to laws or regulations shall take 
effect for purposes of a State program until approved as an amendment. 

30 C.F.R. § 732.17(g). 

The Surface Coal Mining and Reclamation Act requires that "[n]o person may engage in 

surface mining operations unless he or she has first obtained a permit .... " W.Va. Code § 22-3-8. 

The statute and its implementing regulations establish detailed requirements for the content ofpermit 

applications and associated reclamation plans, for evaluation and approval ofpermit applications, 

and forrevision and renewal ofmining permits. W.Va. Code §§ 22-3-9, 22-3-10, 22-3-18,22-3-19; 

38 C.S.R §§ 2-3 through 2.7, 2.9,2.10, and 2.22. 

The Surface Coal Mining and Reclamation Act allows any person having an interest which 

is or may be adversely affected to file written objections to any proposed initial or revised pennit 

application for a surface mining operation and to request and participate in an informal conference 

on the proposaL W.Va. Code § 22-3-20(b). IfDEP approves the application, those opposed may 

request a hearing before the Surface Mine Board pursuant to W.Va. Code § 22B-l-l et seq. 

The Legislature has empowered the Surface Mine Board "[t]o consider appeals, subpoena 

witnesses, administer oaths, make investigations and hold hearings relevant to matters properly 

pending" and "[t]o perform any and all acts within the appropriate jurisdiction of each board to 

secure for the benefit ofthe state participation in appropriate federally delegated programs." W.Va. 

Code § 22B-I-5(1) and (4). An "order made and entered by a board after an appeal hearing" is 

subject to judicial review pursuant to W.Va. Code §§ 22B-1-9 and 29A-5-4. 
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In 1985, in revising the West Virginia statutes governing regulation of surface coal mining 

operations, the Legislature enacted a fee-shifting provision which provided that: 

Whenever an order is issued under this section, or as a result ofany administrative 
or judicial proceeding under this article, at the request ofany person, a sum equal to 
the aggregate amount of all costs and expenses, including attorney fees, as 
determined by the board or the court to have been reasonably incurred by such 
person for or in connection with his participation in the proceedings, may be assessed 
against either party by the board or court. . 

W.Va. Code § 22-4-3(g) (1985). Appendix Record at 289.1 In 1994, as part of a second revision 

of the surface mining statutes, the Legislature deleted the administrative and judicial appeal 

provisions that were part ofthe original program, including W.Va. Code §22-4-3 (g) (1985). Id. The 

deletion of those provisions was not shown or discussed in West Virginia's submission for OSM's 

approval. Id. The newly enacted statutes made no mention ofreimbursement ofcosts and expenses, 

including attorney fees, incurred in administrative or judicial review proceedings. Id. 

After analyzing these facts during the course of the Surface Mine Board's adjudication of 

HePA's fee petitions at issue in this appeal, the federal Office ofSurface Mining Reclamation and 

Enforcement ("OSM") concluded that: 

the statutory requirements at West Virginia Code 22-4-2 [1985] regarding appeals 
to the Surface Mine Board, and West Virginia Code 22-4-3 [1985] regarding appeals 
from the board, judicial review and temporary relief are still part of the State's 
approved program. In addition, West Virginia Code 22-4-3(g) [1985] and our 
approval of [38 C.S.R. 2-] subsection 20.12 make it clear that any person involved 
in any administrative or judicial proceeding is entitled to reimbursement ofall costs 
I:).nd expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by his participation in the 
proceedings as determined by'the board or court. Since the State's previously 
approved appeal provisions at West Virginia Code 22-4-2 and 22-4-3 [1985] remain 
part ofthe approved West Virginia program, they must be implemented by the State. 

Throughout the remainder ofthis brief, the Appendix Record is cited as "AR _". 



AR 290. According to OSM. DEP has agreed to implement these provisions so that any pending 

or future proceedings involving costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, on administrative or 

judicial review comply with W.Va. Code 22-4~3(g)(1985) and 38 C.S.R. § 2-20.12. Id. 

For their part, the provisions of 38 C.S.R. § 2-20.12 authorize fee awards in five distinct 

circumstances. Fees may be awarded to: 

* [a ]ny participating party against the violator upon a finding that there is a violation 
of the Act, the regulations or the permit has occurred, and there is a determination 
that the party made a significant contribution to the full and fair determination ofthe 
issues, 38'C.S.R. § 2-20.12.a.1; 

* any participating party other than the violator or his representative from the 
Department ofEnvironmental Protection upon a determination that the party made 
a significant contribution to a full and fair determination of the issues, 38 C.S.R. § 
2-20.12.a.2; 

* a violator from the Department of Environmental Protection when the violator 
demonstrates that the Department of Environmental Protection issues cessation 
order, a show cause order or notice ofviolation in bad faith and for the purpose of 
harassing or embarrassing the violator, provided that no award shall be made under 
this subsection ifthe Department ofEnvironmental Protection prevails upon the issue 
of a violation, 38 C.S.R. § 2-20.12.a.3; 

* a violator from any participating party other than the Department ofEnvironmental 
Protection where such participating parties initiated or participated in the magistrate 
proceeding in bad faith and for the purpose ofharassing or embarrassing the violator, 
38 C.S.R. § 2-20.12.a.4; and 

* the Department ofEnvironmental Protection from any participating party where the 
Department of Environmental Protection demonstrates that any such party 
participating in such proceeding in bad faith and for the purpose of harassing or 
embarrassing the Department ofEnvironmental Protection, 38 C.S.R. § 2-20.12.a.5. 

An award may also include attorneys' fees and expert witness fees expended in obtaining an award 

of costs, expenses and attorneys' fees. Id. 
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n, Statement of Facts and Proceedings Below. 

The Surface Mine Board entered the combined fee award at issue in this appeal for work 

performed and expenses incurred in two separate administrative appeals in which HCPA challenged 

two separate decisions by DEP to approve significant revisions to each oftwo permits under which 

Green Valley Coal Company ("Green Valley") operates a· coal preparation plant and associated 

refuse disposal facilities adjacent to Hominy Creek ofthe Gauley River in Nicholas County. In each 

appeal HCPA established error in the challenged agency decision and obtained on-the-ground relief 

that altered the legal relationship between HCPA, DEP, and Green Valley. 

A. The Administrative Appeals Underlying the Fee Award. 

On the merits ofAppeal No. 2003-46-SMB, HCPA persuaded the Board that the statement 

ofprobable hydrologic consequences that Green Valley submitted to DEP in support ofIncidental 

Boundary Revisio.n No.9 C'IBR9") to Permit 0-10-83 was insufficient. AR 16-18,19-20,308. In 

its initial final order in that appeal, the Board went on to find that evidence presented at hearing 

cured the deficiencies. AR 18, 308. The Board affirmedDEP's approval ofIBRNo. 9 on the basis 

of the curative additional evidence presented during the review hearing. AR 20. After amending 

and then vacating its initial fmal order, the Board ultimately reinstated that order and supplemented 

it with additional on-the-ground relief in an amended final order that actually ended consideration 

of the merits of HCPA's administrative appeal. AR 42-43. 

On the merits ofAppeal No. 2005-12-SMB, the Board vacated DEP's decision to approve 

"Revision No.5" to Green Valley's Permit No. 0-155-83. The Board remanded the matter to the 

agency for consideration of a new version of the pennit revision. AR 45-46. 
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ill each instance the Board actedfavorably on a joint motion and proposed order that HCP A 

and Green Valley filed pursuant to comprehensive settlement that those two parties forged for the 

purpose of resolving a series of disputes concerning Green Valley's compliance with state and 

federal environmental statutes at the preparation plant and waste disposal facilities adjacent to 

Hominy Creek. AR 21-23 (lICPA/Green Valley joint motion), 25-33 (lICPA/Green Valley 

settlement agreement).2 With respect to HCPA' s two appeals then pending before the Surface Mine 

Board, the settlement agreement required only that the parties file and diligently prosecute the joint 

motions and proposed orders previously mentioned. AR 28-29. With respect to fees and costs, the 

settlement agreement noted the parties' agreement on an award for work performed and expenses 

incurred in the federal court ac~ion between the parties pursuant to the Clean Water Act. AR 31.3 

The settlement agreement went on to state the parties' determination that applicable law did not 

authorize an award from Green Valley to HCPA for work performed or expenses incurred in the 

pending administrative appeals. Id. The settlement recited Green Valley's agreement not to oppose 

any request for fees by HCPA from any other party. AR 32. 

DEP did not oppose the jointmotions that HCP A and Green Valley filed. Nor did the agency 

appeal the Surface Mine Board's final order in either appeal. 

2 The details of the long course oflitigation concerning Green Valley's operations 
adjacent to Hominy Creek are set forth in HCPA's fee petitions, AR 50-51,194-195, and in 
HCPA's response brief in the court below, AR 370-71. 

3 The Consent Order in the Clean Water Act litigation required Green Valley to pay 
HCPA the sum of$165,000.00 "for litigation costs incurred in this action." AR 39. 

-8
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B. HePA's Fee Petitions. 

Following entry ofthe Board's final orders, HCPAfiled separate, timely fee petitions in each 

appeal. AR 48-191, 192-266, 307. After amending the petitions to correct oversights and 

mathematical errors, HCPA sought in Appeal No. 2003-46-SMB attorney fees totaling $54,525.00, 

expert witness fees in the amount of $17,112.50, $3,918.26 in out-of-pocket expenses, and 

$22,458.25 in prejUdgment interest, for a total award of$98,0 14.0 1. AR 305. In Appeal No. 2005-

12-SMB, HCP A ultimately requested an award of$1 06,293.75 in attorney fees, $39,413.00 in expert 

witness fees, $3,918.26 in out-of-pocket expenses, and $42,346.38 in prejudgment interest, which 

total $191,971.39. ld. For work perfonned in prosecuting both fee petitions, HCPA sought an 

additional award of$11 ,625 .00 in attorney fees and $1,074.43 in out-of-pocket expenses, which total 

$12,699.43. ld. 

DEP filed a single response to both petitions and then withdrew its principal arguments 

against the requested awards. AR 191-92. The agency did not file declarations or affidavits offact, 

nor did it present any additional evidence to counter the factual assertions on which HCP A based 

the.two fee petitions at issue. After HCPA filed a reply memorandum in support ofits petition, the 

Board heard oral argument. Following oral argument, HePA filed a supplemental fee petition and 

amendments to the pending petitions. AR293-306. At no point in the proceedings on HCPA's fee. 

petitions did DEP file proposed fmdings of fact' or conclusions of law. 

C. The Fee Award. 

The Board granted HCPA's amended fee petitions in full. AR 307-27. At the outset, the 

Board noted that "[t]he history of these appeals and the attorney fee petition spans more than six 

years, hours of testimony and deliberation [which] culminated in a settlement and a final order 
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entered by the Board on June 9, 2009 that resolved all pending matters that were the subjects of 

these appeals." AR 307. The Board also made clear that "[a]lthough the June 9, 2009, final order 

states that DEP' opposed the joint motion (because DEP did not authorize HepA and Green Valley 

to file the motion as 'unopposed'), DEP did not in fact file any pleading in opposition to the joint 

motion." AR 309. 

The Board then explained that "Appellants' success in challenging DEP's approval ofIBR 

9, combined with its success in obtaining an order requiring the placement of piezometers to 

measure fill saturation, and an order vacating and remanding Revision No.5 and obtaining 

agreement on enhanced environmental protection measures for Permit 0-155-83 merit a 'fully 

compensatory fee.'" AR 318. The Board further found that "HePA's successes are not diminished 

because they stem from a comprehensive settlement ofthis and other litigation with Green Valley." 

ld. The Board explained that "[t]he relief that HePA obtained came not through the Settlement 

Agreement itself but through the Board's June 9, 2009, fmal order, which altered the legal 

relationship of all the parties by reinstating the Board's initial final order and providing additional 

on-the-ground environmental relief." ld, 

Turning to the entitlement standard for obtaining a fee award, the Board held that 

"Appellants meet that standard because (1) Appellants initiated this administrative review 

proceeding; (2) Appellants participated in this proceeding as the sole prosecuting parties, and (3) 

Appellants made a substantial contribution to a full and fair determination of the issues by 

identifying the defects in Green Valley's PHe and prompting Green Valley and DEP to submit 

additional evidence which the Board found sufficient to cure those defects, obtaining the Board's 

order requiring Green Valley to amend IBR 9 to add two piezometers to monitor fill saturation, and 
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demanding the enhancement of Revision No.5 to require capture and treatment of all flow and to 

expand Green Valley!s hydrologic monitoring plan." AR 325. In addition, the Board held that 

"HCP A significantly contributed to the changes made to the permits and absent the involvement of 

HCPA there would not have been a revision or modification to the pennit." Id. 

Witb respect to DEP's objections to specific segments of time that HCPA claimed for its 

. counsel, the Board cited HCPA's brief as justification for the time spent in all phases of the 

litigation. AR 318. After extensively reviewing the factors bearing on computation ofa reasonable 

fee, the Board concluded that the attorney fees, expert witness fees, out-of-pocket expenses, and 

prejudgment interest that HCPA requested were reasonable. AR 323-24. Accordingly, the Board 

granted HCPA's request in full. 

D. DEP's Motion for Clarification. 

The Surface Mine Board served its decision on counsel ofrecord for DEP on April 16, 2010, 

by hand-delivery. AR 327. On or about May 4. 2010, DEP filed with the Board a "Motion for 

Clarification." AR 328n 32. The motion did not identify any authority by which a party may seek 

- or the Surface Mine Board may grant "clarification" of a final order after its entry. On June 7,

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