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

April 16, 2010 fee award as a final order is misplaced. The order was not titled as a 

final order and did not contain any language indicating it as such. The lack of finality in 

the April 16, 2010 order is further highlighted by the June 10, 2010 order which clearly 
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indicates it was fina/. It is this Final Order that WVDEP filed its appeal within thirty days 

of entry. The Circuit Court was correct to deny HCPA's motion to dismiss. 

The Board and HCPA play down the importance of the Agreements reached by 

HCPA and Green Valley. However, an extensive review of the Agreements sheds light 

on one simple truth: HCPA was given a fee award for relief it obtained in the 

Agreements, in which ALL of the relief pertained to HCPA's SMCRA claims before the 

Board and not the Clean Water Act claims in the federal case. If all of the relief 

pertained to claims before the Board, then how can HCPA claim that the fee award was 

for litigation costs in the federal case? It cannot, at least not in good faith. 

Unfortunately, the Board went along with HCPA's ruse and awarded HCPA another 

$300,000.00+ for the same relief. This is the clearly wrong and arbitrary and capricious 

act that the Circuit Court appropriately reversed. The inequity of having WVDEP pay for 

something HCPA has already received payment for serves as a recurrent theme for all 

of the Circuit Court's findings. 

For instance, the Circuit Court's reliance upon W.va. Code R. § 38-2-20. 12.a.1 is 

consistent with its ruling and the applicable law. It is consistent because the ultimate 

resolution came about through the Agreements between HCPA and Green Valley, not 

through any action directed to the WVDEP. The fundamental principles of the Circuit 

Court's reliance upon W.va. Code R. § 38-2-20.12.a.1 are that HCPA litigated against 

Green Valley, HCPA secured the Agreements with Green Valley and HCPA was paid by 

Green Valley for its work in securing that relief but WVDEP still pays even though it is 

not involved in the process. 
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Additionally, the Circuit Court's findings, when viewed in light of HCPA's 

Agreements with Green Valley, are, for the most part, accurately reflected within the 

record. To the extent they are not, it would not rise to reversible error. Furthermore, the 

Board's failure to recognize the factual importance of the Agreements between HCPA 

and Green Valley was clearly wrong in view of the reliable, probative and substantial 

evidence on the whole record. Since the Board was clearly wrong, and provided no 

rational for recognizing the Agreements, the Circuit Court did not err when it set forth its 

findings. 

Finally, HCPA asserts that WVDEP's failure to object to the entry of the orders 

granting the relief set forth in HCPA and Green Valley's Agreements essentially ratified 

that relief and WVDEP cannot now argue that HCPA is not entitled to its fees. This 

argument would place WVDEP in a catch-twenty-two because WVDEP must now 

decide whether to accept additional environmental protections and end litigation or 

continue litigating its position to avoid the payment of SUbstantial fees. HCPA is 

essentially asking this Court to punish WVDEP for choosing the former. This would not 

promote the resolution of cases by agreement. Therefore, the Circuit Court did not err 

in failing to address this issue. 

For the above-stated reasons, WVDEP respectfully requests this Court to affirm 

the Circuit Court's decision reversing the Board's fee award to HCPA. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

As to HCPA's contention that WVDEP's appeal was untimely, WVDEP asserts 

Moten v. Stump, 220 W.va. 652, 648 S.E.2d 639 (2007), is distinguishable. As such, 

Rule 19(a)(1) of the Revised Rules of Appellate Procedure for oral argument regarding 
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"cases involving assignments of error in the application of settled law" would likely 

govern. Therefore, WVDEP requests Rule 19 oral argument regarding this issue. 

With regards to the remaining issues, they concern the application of settled law 

and a result against the weight of the evidence. See Rule 19(a)(1) & (3) of the Revised 

Rules of Appellate Procedure. Therefore, WVDEP requests Rule 19 oral argument 

regarding the remaining issues. 

ARGUMENT 

A. Standards of Review 

"In cases where the circuit court has amended the result before the 

administrative agency, this Court reviews the final order of the circuit court and the 

ultimate disposition by it of an administrative law case under an abuse of discretion 

standard and reviews questions of law de novo." Syl. pt. 1, Clower v. W Virginia Dept. 

of Motor Vehicles, 223 W.Va. 535, ,678 S.E.2d 41, (2009) (citation omitted). 

"Evidentiary findings made at an administrative hearing should not be reversed unless 

they are clearly wrong." Syl. pt. 2, Id. (citation omitted). "When the court, on a thorough 

'examination of the whole case, finds that substantial justice has been done, the 

judgment will not be reversed for any error committed by the circuit court, unless such 

error, if it had not been committed, would have tended in some measure to produce a 

different result." Syl. pt. 2, State ex reI. McGraw v. Nat'l Fuels Corp., 215 W. Va. 532, 

600 S.E.2d 244 (2004) (citation omitted). 

B. WVDEP's Appeal Was Timely 

HCPA's reliance on the April 16, 2010 fee award as a final order is misplaced. 

The Order was not titled a "Final Order." AR 307. Nor did it contain any language 
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indicating it was final. AR 307-326. The lack of finality in the April 16, 2010 order is 

highlighted by the June 10, 2010 order which clearly indicates it was final: U[T]he 

Board ... considers the arguments in these appeals final and closed." AR 334 

(emphasis added). It is this Final Order that WVDEP indisputably filed its appeal 

within thirty days of entry. 

Moten v. Stump, 220 W.va. 652, 648 S.E.2d 639 (2007). is distinguishable and 

thus not dispositive as HCPA argues. The orders at issue in Moten contained specific 

language indicating their finality. For example, the December 15, 2004 order "stated 

'this matter is DISMISSED from the docket of this Court.'" Id. at 656. The October 12, 

2005 order "stated specifically that 'the Court dismisses this matter and strikes it from 

the docket, and ORDERS that the previous Dismissal Order entered on December 15, 

2004, is effective and that this matter is now completed.'" Id. at 657. Since the April 16, 

2010 order contained no similar language, it cannot be deemed final. Only when the 

June 9, 2010 order stated that "the arguments in these appeals [are] final and closed" 

does the Board enter a final order. Since WVDEP appealed within thirty days of the 

entry of the June 9, 2010 final order, WVDEP's appeal was timely. The Circuit Court 

was correct to deny HCPA's motion to dismiss. 

C. 	 The Circuit Court Did Not Err Applying W.Va. Code R. § 38-2-20.12.a.1 
Because it is Consistent with Applicable Law 

The Circuit Court was confronted the inequity of having WVDEP pay for 

something HCPA has already received payment for. A thorough review of HCPA and 

Green Valley's federal litigation Agreements sheds light on one simple truth: HCPA was 

given a fee award for relief it obtained in the Agreements, in which all of the relief 

pertained to HCPA's SMCRA claims before the Board and not the Clean Water Act 
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claims in the federal case. Therefore, the relief obtained by HCPA before the Board 

was really the relief obtained in litigation against Green Valley not WVDEP and Green 

Valley paid HCPA's fees. As such, the Circuit Court's reliance upon W.Va. Code R. § 

38-2-20.12.a.1 is consistent with the applicable law. 

W.va. Code R. § 38-2-20.12.a.1 provides: 

Any participating party against the violator upon a finding that there 
is a violation of the Act, the regulations or the permit has occurred, 
and there is a determination that the party made a significant 
contribution to the full and fair determination of the issues; 

HePA asserts that this provision is inapplicable because the only provision applicable to 

fee awards in proceedings challenging WVDEP's permit decisions is W.Va. Code R. § 

38-2-20.12.a.2, which provides fee awards against WVDEP and not Green Valley. See 

Louden v. West Virginia Division of Environmental Protection, 209 W.va. 689, 551 

S.E.2d 25 (2001). However, what HCPA fails to disclose to the Court is that Louden's 

ruling regarding fee awards in proceedings challenging WVDEP's permit decisions was 

modified by the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit in Ohio River Valley 

Environmental Coalition v. Green Valley Coal Company, to also allow fee awards 

against intervenors - Green Valley in the appeals below. 511 F.3d 407,417 (2007) ("In 

this case Green Valley's submission of allegedly illegal mining permit applications 

provides the necessary connection between the substantive provisions of SMCRA and 

fee liability."). In effect, an intervenor, when defending allegedly illegal mining permits 

and practices, becomes a violator of SMCRA because the intervenor "violated its duties 

under SMCRA by submitting permit applications that did not comply with the Act's 

requirements." Id. at 416. U[T]he purpose of SMCRA's fee-shifting provision - to ensure 

compliance with SMCRA's provisions ... [by] the coal operators regulated by the 

Page 9 of 19 



program - would be undercut by a rule that protects operators from fee liability when 

they intervene to defend allegedly illegal mining permits and practices." Id. 

Since SMCRA and its regulations contemplate fee awards against intervenors in 

permit challenges, West Virginia's rules must be read in a consistent manner. See 

Louden, 209 W.va. at 692, 551 S.E.2d at 28 ("a state regulation enacted pursuant to 

WVSCMRA 'must be read in a manner consistent with federal regulations' promulgated 

under [SMCRA]" (citation omitted»). To the extent Louden is contrary, it does not apply. 

The only applicable fee-sllifting provision in West Virginia's rules that can be read in a 

manner consistent with ORVEC's ruling is W.va. Code R. § 38-2-20.12.a.1. This is 

because, aside from the fee-shifting provision HCPA asserts against WVDEP, W.va. 

Code R. § 38-2-20.12.a.1 provides the only other means by which an organization such 

as HCPA can obtain a fee award.3 

Back to the Agreements, HCPA goes through painful detail to try to absolve 

Green Valley of its responsibility to pay HCPA for its fees. AR 31-32. The Agreements 

state that SMCRA does not "authorize the entry of fee awards against a permit applicant 

who is not a 'violator' of the state regulatory program" and that simply submitting an 

application for regulatory approval and defending the agency action granting the 

application does not make Green Valley a violator under the governing regulation. AR 

31. Not only is HCPA and Green Valley's statement a misrepresentation of the law, it is 

a deliberate misrepresentation so that HCPA can return to the honey pot and seek 

3 HCPA is a "participating party" under the fee-shifting provisions in W.va. Code R § 38-2
20.12.a. Only W.va. Code R § 38-2-20.12.a.1 (against a violator) and 38-2-20. 12.a.2 (against 
the WVDEP) allow the recovery of fees by a "participating party." 
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additional fees from WVDEP.4 AR 32 ("Green Valley agrees not to oppose any request 

for fees by HCPA from parties other than Green Valley in those proceedings."). 

The ultimate resolution came about through the Agreements between HCPA and 

Green Valley, not through any action directed to the WVDEP. The fundamental 

principles of the Circuit Court's reliance upon W.Va. Code R. § 38-2-20.12.a.1 are that 

HCPA litigated against Green Valley, HCPA secured the Agreements with Green Valley 

and HCPA was paid by Green Valley for its work in securing that relief. Green Valley 

was the "violator" and thus liable for HCPA's fees, not WVDEP. As such, the Circuit 

Court appropriately reversed the Board's clearly wrong and arbitrary and capricious act 

in granting a fee award to HCPA and prevents the inequity of having WVDEP pay for 

something HCPA has already received payment for. 

D. 	 The Circuit Court Did Not Reject the Board's Findings of Fact but 
Found the Board's Fee Award Was Clearly Wrong in Light of the 
Substantial Evidence Regarding the Agreements and the Board's 
Failure to Address the Agreements5 

HCPA lists a litany of factual assertions made by the Circuit Court that HCPA 

alleges the record does not support. However, a review of the record clearly shows that 

the assertions of the Circuit Court are well founded in the record. It is the Board that 

was clearly wrong in addressing the Agreements and arbitrary and capricious in not 

4 It is important to note that HCPA was a party to ORVEC and HCPA's counsel in the appeals 
below were one in the same in ORVEC. Therefore, the statements within the Agreements 
cannot be attributed to mistake. The only other conclusion is that HCPA wanted more money 
for the same work. 
5 WVDEP candidly agrees with HCPA that the Circuit Court's statement regarding the impact of 
the 4th Circuit's interpretation of two regulations on HCPA's relief before the Board is not 
supported by the record. However, the statement is simply superfluous, could be removed from 
the Circuit Court's order and if removed, would produce no different result to the Circuit Court's 
decision. Since it would not produce a different result, this admitted error alone would not be 
sufficient to reverse the Circuit Court's decision. Syl. pt. 2, Nat'l Fuels Corp., 215 W. Va. 532, 
533, 600 S.E.2d 244, 245 (2004). 
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recognizing the Agreements' significance in resolving the appeals. Most of the 

challenged factual assertions center upon the Agreements and it was proper for the 

Circuit Court to address the Agreements. 

1. 	 HCPA's Litigation Efforts Did Principally Involve Green Valley 

HCPA admitted that its litigation efforts principally involved Green Valley. Aside 

from the two proceedings where HCPA challenged WVDEP's rulemaking, eight of the 

ten proceedings cited by HCPA were against Green Valley or WVDEP's decisions 

regarding Green Valley's submissions. AR 50-51. Call it what you will, but eight out of 

ten cases involving the same company, Green Valley, evidences a pattern to continually 

challenge Green Valley's operations, whether appealing WVDEP's decisions or directly 

attacking Green Valley. Furthermore, four of the proceedings were resolved through 

HCPA's Agreements with Green Valley in the federal litigation brought directly against 

Green Valley. AR 51. Given the above, the Circuit Court's statement is neither 

unsupported nor false. 

2. 	 HCPA's Fee Recovery From Green Valley Was For More Than 
HCPA's Clean Water Act Litigation 

HCPA goes to great lengths to pull the wool over the Court's eyes and avert its 

gaze upon the glaring simplicity of the Agreements. HCPA's federal litigation began 

with claims under the Clean Water Act and ended with relief under SMCRA. AR 25-41. 

This relief was obtained through the appeals before the Board, which the Board had 

authority to grant given that the requested relief was the same relief being sought in the 

appeals at issue in the case sub judice. AR 27-29. HCPA obtained a fee award from 

Green Valley in the amount of $165,000.00 for SMCRA relief not relief under the Clean 
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Water Act. AR 39. HCPA cannot point to any relief within the Agreements associated 

with the Clean Water Act. 

The two remedial measures within the Settlement Agreement address SMCRA 

relief in the appeals before the Board: 

1. 	 "To address HCPA's claims in two of the administrative appeals, namely 

Nos. 2004-1S-SNIB and 200S-12-SMB, and in the federal civil action, Green 

Valley agrees to perform the remedial work set forth in Paragraph 3 of the 

proposed Consent Decree .... " AR 27 (bold emphasis added).6 

2. 	 "To further and completely address HCPA's claims in the remaining 

administrative appeal, namely No. 2003-46-SMB .... " Id. (emphasis added). 

These are the only remedial measures contained within the Settlement Agreement. Id. 

The Consent Decree contained additional detailed remedial actions in paragraph 

three as referenced in the Settlement Agreement above. Id.; AR 36-39. These 

remedial actions set forth in more detail the specific performances of Green Valley. All 

of the remedial actions were to be taken under the auspices of West Virginia's state 

regulatory program for the federal SMCRA, not the Clean Water Act under which HCPA 

instituted the federal litigation. AR 36-39. In fact, three of the five remedial actions 

specifically state that any changes to these remedial actions will have to adhere to the 

requirements of SMCRA. Id. (Paragraph 3(a), (d) & (e)). The final remedial action 

simply releases all of the federal Clean Water Act claims with no relief afforded 

thereunder. AR 39 (Paragraph 4). Finally, no civil penalties were imposed under the 

Clean Water Act. AR 39. 

6 2004-1S-SMB was closely related to 200S-12-SMB and was ultimately moved to be dismissed 
as moot as part of the Agreements. HePA never requested fees regarding that action. 
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Although HCPA points to self-serving statements within the Agreements that the 

payment of $165,000.00 was for the federal litigation only, the proof is in the pudding.

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